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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REFORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

ABOQUT US

International Entertainment Holdings Limited {the Company} s an intemationd holding group majority owned
by Providence Equity Partners. The principal activity of the Company &5 10 hoid companies that cany out
complementary acfiviies acrass he value chain of Fve entertainment and theatrerelaled activity, principally
in the UK, USA. and Continentat Evope [Ihe Group). The Group considers that these markets have significant
potential for growity and forms the basit for the Group's strategy of further growth ond expansion.

The Company's main holding is The Ambassador Theotra Group Limited {ATG). ATG is o global leader in live
wrilertcinment and i a fully integrated operator across the entire live entedainrent value chain, with activities
n venve operations, ficketing, marketing services and content production. ATG operates in Genmany through
its subsicliary sMehrl-BB Enfertdinment GmbH {Mehr]-BB), which was formed by the merges of the Menrt Group
{acquired in May 2018} with the B8 Entertainment Group of companies facauired in May 2015}

OVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATCG Is focused on proviging g high level of service to two groups of custarners; preducers and audience
members. By making the end-to-end “customer journey"” of our cudience top piaority, we will ensure thatl our
venues are the best stages for the highest quality content developed biy both our own in-house as well as 39

party producsars.
Venue Operations

The cim of ol venue operations division Is to provide a great service fo both our producers and our audience
members. We genercte revenues from renting our venues to productions as well as selling food ond

bevergges ta our gudience membars,

Over the iasl financial year, to help mitigate the impact of COVID-19, the Group's capital expenditure has
been rephased and pricdtized on essential maintenance. However, as we move fowards the easing of
government restrictions and re-opening of venues, investment in improving the guatity of venues to enhance
our customers' thealre-going experence will resume. Many of the Group's venues arg histarc buildings
which have gn important significance in their local areas. Investment in the maintenance of these buildings
is central to the Group's custodianship of them for the benefits of fulure generations of audiences. The
development and improvement of these venues to meet the needs and expeciations of today's audiences
and producers are agually impartant,

In the UK, the Groun owns and operates some of the most iconic venues with 10 In London and 21 more
across the country. The Group operates 15§ thealres in the USA, InCluding two Brogdway venues (the Lyric
and the Hudson}. and 13 theatres in other US cities, The Graup also operates five venuas in Germany as part
of the Mehrl-BB Entertalinment Group.

Ticketing

The Group operates the largest theatre ticketing business in the UK and sells the majority of tickats to shows

in its venues through its own ticketing businesses,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Content Productlon

A kev strategy of the Group's Content Production division is to find, secure, and produce high-quality shows
for both ATG and third-party venues, The Group develops and produces new content in addition to co-
producing, investing in and presenting content from independent prodycers,

Markeling

The Group through its subsidiary companies of AKA Group, headquartered in London ond BB Group, head-
quartered in Monnheim, Germany. is able to offer o wide range of marketing services, which are indine and
complementary to the Group's overal shrategy. AKA, a global entedainment morketing and media
advertising agency for ihe live entertainment, arts and cultural industries has offices in Lorndon, Manchester,
New York and Australia. AKA haos continued to support the Group's strategy of develoging independent yet
complementary business ines to provide a fullservice experience 1o clients within the theatre and five
enfertainment industry, Furthermore, AKA has seen its business offering extend fusther afisld with Clients not

directty inked to the live entertainment industry, such as museums, golleries, gordens and zoological centras,

Alongside its production servicas, Mehr-BB Group, vig its subsidiary ESMS, provides marketing sewices for iva
entertainmsant preductions in German-speaking Europe.

REVIEW OF FY21

The Group's operations wera significantly disrupted in FY21 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, All jurisdictions in
which the Group operates hod social distfancing restrictions which requied the closure of all its verwes.
Throughout the year, the Group has been focused on conserving cash through cost restruciuring and supplier
negofiations as well as implementing avallobie govemment support, in the form of furlough schernes, tax
payment deferrals, business rates relief and grants.

The Group has renegotiated ifs covenants with ifs lenders and extended the maiurily of its senlor laans to 2025
The Group also raised additional funds from a new minority investor, Amplify Capital lnvestment Ple. Lid, which
is owngd by Siverake Partners.

The Group has postponed the majority of its programming into the future and as a result, has retgined a high
proportion of the balance of advances scdles of ticke!s sold pre-COVID-19 shul down,

The toss before tax for the period was £147.1 milion (2020: £33.2 miliion]. Curvent year and prior year jasses ore
athibutable to the impact of COVID-1? on the Group.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

KEY PERFORMANCE INDIC ATORS {KPls)

" Financial
Revenue Operating loss
£47.6m (£94.6m)
. {2020: £2.2m operating
[2020: £474.7rm) profif]

P —

Non-financial KPis:

Due to the closure of venues throughaut FY21, the non-financial KPis ysually used 1o monitor the business
have not been considered by management, with focus instead on cash managament and ¢ost reduction.

Financial KPIs:

- Revenue of £41.4m decreased 1% from 2020 as COVID-1% forced the closure of dll of the Group's

venues for the full year. Please refer to note 3 for geographical anaiysis of revenue.

- The ocperating lass of £74.6m results from the reduction inrevenue, offset by lower cost of sates and

action taken by management fo reduce aperating expenses,

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

The position of the Group at the pericd-end is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 40 and 41, the consolidated statement of cash flows on page 44 and in the related notes on pages 45
to 8%.

- Cash from operafing achivifies was & net cdash outilow of £108.5 reillion [2020: inflow of £62.2 milion). This
reflects the mpact of COVIE-1% on the year's Irading, with an operoting loss of £94.6 milion {2020:
operating profit £2.2 milion) and negative net working capital cash fiow of £43.5 milion (2020: positive
£10.7 million].

- Investing cash flows include £14.8 milian (2020: £54.} million} of capital expenditure. Copital expenditure
waois minimized in the year to preserve cash. This was offset by £1.4 milion {2020: £1.9 milion} net

recoupment in show investrments in the period.

- Net debt, including finance legse labiities. s consistent with pricr year at £564. 1millon (2020: £564.2
million}. New shareholder loorns of £135.0 million were raised, offiet by repayrmeant of £85.5 million of bank
loans and £11.! mition of finance lease repayments. Closing cash was £185.4 million, up Form £13%.1 milfon
at March 2020, and included a £2.& million escrow balance (2020 £8.8 million}.

- New shares were issued during 1he year, raising £151.3 milion,

3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {confinued)
FOR YHE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Leverage and liquidity

The Group agreed with its lenders temporary amendments to the EBIFDA calculation used to test ifs leverage
covenont, which toke info account the impact of reduced trading. Undor this amended agreement the
Group complied with its net leverage covenant throughout the period.

The net leverage covenant specificaly focuses on the drawn senior debl of the Group so excludes

shareholder leans and finance lease liabilities frefer o note 19].

The cath balance wed for leverage covenant testing excludes the cash botance held by subsidiaries outside
of the banking group of £65.8m at 27 March 2021 [202(: Nil}.

Net debl for covenanl purposes al 27 March 2071 was £310.3 million (£358.0 million of senior debl plus £69 .4
millian of revolving credit faciity nel of cash {excluding ascrow] of £117.1 milion}. This was E13.0 million higher
thom the prior year ending bolance of £297.3 miliion.

Cash As at 27 March 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of £185.4 milion {2020:
£139.1 million), including escrow acceunts which are held for use primarily in connection

with specific productions. The Group also had additional available revolving facilities of
£5.6 million {2020: £5.& milion), Tha cash balance increased by £46.4 million in the period,
while freely available cash increcsed by £52.7 million,

£m For the 52 week
perlod ended
27 March 2021

Cperafing cash flows 1108.5)

Investing cash flows {12.3)

Financing cash flows 170.2

Net cash flows 434

Impact of foreign exchange (2.0)

Movement in cash bolance 464
4
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Borrowings  The Graup has total available bank facilities of £433.0 million, of which £5.4 million remains

vndrawn ol the period end.

The senior debt is secured by o debenture over the majorty of the assets of the Group.
The seniar facilities agrasment also requires the Group to comply with certain covenants.

As at 27 March 2021, the Group was in compliance with its covenants.

The Group also has loans from its shareholders fotaling £139.2m, including occrued interest
(2020; ENil}. Interest on shareholder loans is non-cash paying and accrues at fixed rates
ranging betweaen 4.0% and 10.0%.

The Group has a finance lease creditar of £166.1 miflion {2020: £177.2 million}.

The maturity of the debt 1s shown In notes 19, 20 and 28 to the financial statements,

POST SBALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the period end, the Group completed the acquisition of Nederdander Detrot LLC and
Broadway San Francisco LLC For total consideralion of £173.2 million. This acquisifion adds two theatres in San

Francizco and three in Detroit to the Group's portfaiio of owned and operated venues.

Subsequenl to the period end the Group received €5.4 million of COVID-19 related government granl income
from the Garman gavemmenl,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong lundamentals that underpin the theatrical industy combined with the quality of aur portfolio of
venues contribute to the Directors' confidence in the long term growth of the business in future yeais. In order
to withstand the curent challengss of COVID-12, the Group will conlinue to judiciously monitor #s cost base
and preserve and protect s lquidiy position whilst ensudng that we are adedquately prepared for a speedy
return ta operations,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the importance of s environmental responsibilities, monitars its impact on the
ervironment, and designs and implements appropriate policies to minimise ony damage that might be

causad by the Group's activities.

The Group seeks 1o reduce the erwironmental impact of its operations through responsible resource
procurement and corsistently thrives to efiminate waste with our supply chain partners. Specificaly, we are
driving efficient energy procurement, diverting all of cur waste from landfil and where passible, installing
energy efficiant systems in our venues. As an organisation our environmental impact is a key pillar of our
averarching Corporate Social Responsibility strategy.

The closure of the Group's vanues throughout the year coused the magjority of its ongoing environmental
impact inifiatives to be paused. Howevar, the Closure of all venues and offices has in itself raduced the Group's

grvironmentalimpact,
Greenhouse Gas Reporiing

The Group is required by the Companies Act 2006, Regulations 2013 to measure ond reports ifs direct and

indirect UK greenhouse gas emissions.

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group. Indirect
greenhouse gas emissions are from sources owned or controiled by other entities but are a consequence of

the activities of the Group.

The methodology used to calculate emissions s bosed on the Greenhouse Gas Prolocol’s comporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard approach, The UK gavaemment conversion factor guidance ["DEFRA™)
was used to calculate emission fnctars.

Gresnhouse gas reporting is split betwesn thiee categones, The explonations for these are as follows;

scope 1; Direct emissions controlled by the Group. This includes gas and ol used for heating as well as emissions

from company cars {both owned and leosed).
Scope Z: Indirect emissions exclusivety composed of purchased electricity within the Group.

Scope 3 Indirect emissions which occur of sowces which are not owned of contralied by the Group and
which are not classed as scope 2 emissions. This includes emissions fram rental vehicles where the Groug

purchased the fuel

Sensitivity: Intarmnal tse



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Absolute UK carbion emlssions (tonnes of COy Year ended 27 March 2021
Scope | ST 2,035.86
Scope 2 256.87
Scope 3 792
3.000.45
202

UK carben intensity
Tonnhes of COz per £1000 of revenus ' 0.14
Tonnes of CO:z per empioyee 089

QUR PEOPLE

Number of employees ot 27 March 2021 Women Men Tolal
Directors of the company ! ' 4 5
Other senior management 20 43 63
Employees 2,205 1.791 3,994

The Group complies with of relevant legisiofion Including those specificolly targeted at preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded through the organisation by the requisite policies. The Group
is committed to enswing the heaith, safety and welfare of its empioyees as far as 5 recsonably practlicable.
The Group seeks lo ensure that stalutory duties are met at all ¥mes and that it operates effective health and
safety management policies ond procedures.

The Group's policy is to consull and discuss with employees, through unions, skaff councils, meetings and
company-wide surveys, matters iikely to affect empioyees' interests. information on engtlens of concem: to
empioyess is given ihrough information bulteting and reports which seek 1o achieve o common owarenass on

the part of of employees of the financial and economic factors affecling the Group's performance.

The Group continues to run its "Be o Star" and "Be a Star Manager” training programmes, focusing on Front of
House and Box Office stoff from when thay join the Group, developing their skilis to improve customer
experiances, and futher olong the line, the key aspects of people management. The Group also rums O wvo
yeor "Riing Star prograrmme for same of our highest potential junior staff as well as a leadership course for
senior managers “Leading Lights”. In FY20. we launched cur sixth cohort of Rising Skars, and a $hid Leading
Ligghts cloass.

The Groug's policy i to recnuit disabled workers for those vacancies that they are able to fil. All necessary
assistance with initial fraining courses Is given. Once employed. o career plan is developed so as to ensure
suitable opportunities for each disabled person. Arrangements are madeo. wherever possible, for retraining

14
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

employess who become disabled. to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate ta thei aptitude;
and ablities.

We contfinue to support internal engagement initiatives such qs International Women's Oay. Pride and Mental
Health Awareneass weak, with more paogle becoming involved in all geographies,

Soclial and Communily involvement

The Group recognises that regional theaotires, both in the UK ond USA, are rocted in the heant of their local

communities.

Many of the UK regional theatres have Creative Learning depoartments which take a leading role in
caontributing to the social cohesion of thelr communities in partnership with charities, trusts and organisations
nationwide, including severai local authorities ona further education parners, Over the course of a yeor,

Creative Leaming con boast more than 70,000 participants of all ages and abilities throughout the UK.

People of o wide variaty of ages ond abilities participate in the Group's Creative Learning aclivities. Oflen
inspired by the productions af venuas, these can include workshops with visiting companies, backstage tours
and pre-show talks, and also Youth Theatres, surmmer schools and classes for adults, in addition te this, many

regional venuses are used for several weeks a yeor by locol amateur production compaonies.

On Broaaway, the Lyiic Theatre hosts an autism friendly performance of Harry Potter and the Cursed Child,
enlightening more thon 00 children and aduits who are diagnosed with an autism spectrum disorder or other
sensitivity issues and their famiies ond friends. Partnering with Theotrs Development Fund (IDF), slight
adjustments to the production have been made so that The show i presented in a frendly. supportive
enviranment. The Hudson Theake hosts the 52nd St Project at  performance of David Byme’s Americon
Ulopia. Founded in 1981, the 52nd Street Project s a communily-based ards organisation, with a mission ta
bring together kids from Hell's Kitchen in Manhattan with thedire professiondls to creole oagingl theatre
offered free 1o the general public. Teenagens from the arganisation’s song writing group enjoyed the show
and were delightedy surprised by a "Meet & Greel” with David and the enfire band after the performance.
The evening dlso setved o5 o fundraiser for the Project where meney raised would support the Beloved Non-

Profit Crganization.

Senathvity: intermal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CAUTIONARY STATEMENY

The Strateqic Report has been prepared solely to provide infarmation to sharsholders 1o assess how the
directors have performed their duty to promaote the success of the Group. The report contains certain forword-
locking statements, which are made by the directors in good fgith based on the information available to them
at the time Ihat the report was signed, but are subject to the inherent uncertainties underlying any forward-

locking information and as such should be reated with caution.
APPROVAL

This report was opproved and authorised for issue by the Boord of Dractors on 21 July 2021 and signed on s
beholf

John Oldcom

Director

6
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

§172 Statement

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN FERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
172(1} COMPANIES ACT 2004

The Board of Directors of Infemational Enterfainment Holdings Limited {“iEH") consider, bath individually and
together. that they have acted In the way they corsider, in good faith, wauld be most fkely to promote the
success of tha Company for the benelit of its stakeholders as a whole (having regard to the stakeholders and
matters set out [h section 172{1) {o-1) of the Act} in the decisions taken during the periad ended 27 March
2021,

$172(1} A “The likely consequence of any decisian In the long ferm”
The Directors have taken the dscision fhey believe bes! support [EH's strategic ambitions. More infarmation
can be found under ‘Future Developments’ on page 5.

$172(1} B “The interest of the company's empioyees”
The Diractors recognise that IEH employess are fundamental and core to our business and the dslivery of ouwr
sirctegic ambitions, More information can be found under "Ou People' onpage 14,

5172{1} C "The need to foster the company's business relalionships with suppliers, custamets and othess™

[EH steakeholders are customers, progducers, supplien, emplovees, sharehoiders ond lenders and the Board
recognises the need to regulory review the ldenlily of ifs stakeholders as it makes decisions. The Board
promatas accountability and transparency wilh all stakeholders.

The Company's fundamentat beliet in promoting the public good is demonstrated and supported by our
Semiar Leadership's active engagement across industry bodies ond our stokeholder cammunity,

Tha Group has recently infroduced new customer angagement survays which will determineg the Net Promater
S5core {NPS) of the Group - this process is run by an extemal company to ensure independence, NP3
performance s being reported to the Board on a monthly basis, Although this is a new process, the findings
are being used to improve customer engagement with knowledge being shored across all of our business,

An arnual smiployes 'Company Day' delivered in london provides a brigfing on the Company’s
peiformgnce and alows individuals to raise guestions and concems. The Group rmonitors ity employes's
commtment 1o its guiding framework by asking memisers of senior management to submit an annual
declaralion confiming whether they have complied with the Group's Code of Conduct. If any employee
wishes to highlight any potential breaches to the Code of Condiuct, they can ¢ontact the independent
whistlebilowing services provider and o formal investigation fallws, wilh ancnymous reporting to the Audit
Committee. Annual employee sngagement surveys are performed 1o highlight areas requinng improvement
in caommunication of the Group's pupose. The Board consigders the results of all employee engagement
surveys a good barometer of the workforce’s confidence in the Group's strategic direction, optimism tor the
fulure and career oopartunities,

17
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {confinued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting and Payment Practices and Performance Reporting. both of
which are published externally. The additional analysis required fo conduct this reporting has highlighled some
areqs in which the Group needs to improve. The Group wealGomaes these changes as it seeks to constantly
improvea in its engagemeant with all stakeholders,

5172{1) D *The Impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment™
The Directors recognise the impoitance of its envirenmontdl responsitifities. More details can be found under
“Environmeanlal matters” onpage 13,

3172(1) E "The desivabllty of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards ot business conduct”

[EH has zero lolerance for maden siavery, bribery and othar torms of comuption. We implement and enforce
effaclive systemns o counder modem slavery, bribery ond comuplion and have infernal policies In place to
educale our employees about how to recognise and deat with these issues 50 as Yo ensure complionc e with

[,

We rermain committed to combatting modern slavery, bribery and comuption by:
- Auditing our supply chains;
Training our stalf to racognise these issues;

- Monitoring potenticl sk across our business,

We have g dadicated whistleblowing service for our employees to repert misconduct or unethical practices
ond have a policy which clearly sets out how members of staff can rgise any Sancerns which they may have.
Details of our code of conduct and modern slavery can be found on the ATG website;

httpsi/fwww alg.co.uk/corporgte-information

hitbps:/ fwwewr, atg.co.uk/ota-miodern-sigveny-ang-humcrtrafficking-slaternend

$172{1) F “The need lo acl faidy as between membaers of the company”
Al every Board meeting the Direclors review. wilh the managerment taam, the progress against sirategic
pricsities and the changing shape of the busness porifolio.

This collaborative approach by the Board, together with the Board's approval of the company sirategy, helps
it to promote the long-term success of the Group. Board decisions are taken against the backdrop of what it
considens to be in the best interes! of the long-term financia! success of the compory and its stakeholders,

including shareholders, emplovees, the community and environment, our suppfiers and custemers,

g



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continuved }
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Frincipal decisions - engaging with shakeholders

As part of the decision making process for the Board, it continues to have regard for the impact of its decisions
an the Group's stakeholders as required under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006. The Board takes iis
responsibility towards stokeholders seriously and strives to build and maintain productive relationships with

each of them.

We outline here how we engage with our stakeholders to drive cutcomes.

1. Employees

The Group’s long-term success is predicated on the commitment and contibution of its worklorce.
Engagement with our employees is essenticl to meet our strategic goals,

During this year, the Board has had to take the diflicult deckion te furlough the maijority of the Group's staff
throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic. The use of Govemment Job Retention Schemss in the UK and Germany
has allowed the Group to avoid, raduce or mitigats redundancies which might otherwise have besen required.

Resources have been made avoiloble to employees 10 support their mental health and wellbeing during this
time. The Group has also implemeanted regulor puise surveys, CEO breakfasts and newslettars {o ensure that

amployees ramain engaged throughout this time.
2. Customers

Customers are central 1o the success of the Group and engagement with our customers aliows the Group te
understand their requirements ond drive initigtives that seek to consistently improve the customer experience.

During the period in which the venues have baen clased, the Group has sought o vse this time 1o plon for re-
opening of o vanugs. In order to ensure that customers feel confident in retuming to our venues. the Groug
has implementad regular customer surveys ta better undgerstand what COVID-1? secure meqsures customers
are expecting 1o see. The feedback from our customers has been invaluaiole in determining our COVID-1%

respanse.

Like many busingsses, once COVID-1? resulted in the lockdown of our venues, the Group had alarge volume
of customar requests to manage. To aid our employees and provide better customer service, the Group
implemented a new customer service technology solution ond a second customer service catt centre to

manage the influx of cuslomer queries inan efficient and timely manner,
3 Suppliers

The Group has a number of long-term supplier partrerships which dare an Impartant part of our business
including in relation to vernue operations and [T Infrastruchure,

The Group engages with its supply chain through o variety of methods including vio dedicated relationship
managers, o central procurement function and mest the buysr evants. The Group recognises the value of its
supply chain partners and the collaborative apgroach the Group has foken with its suppliers olowad the
Group to respond proactively and promptly to the impact of COVID-1 9.

19
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continved )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERYOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

During 2020, as part of the inftiatives 1o prasenve liquidity, the Group worked with suppliers to adjust its supply
needs.

4. Content Pariners

QOur content portners are key to delivering o successiul customer experience, Throughout the COVID-19
Fandemic 1t has been imperalive thal we engage with our contant partners 1o ensure that there is a plan for
how we deal with the re-scheduting and cancellalion of shaws in our venues. We have worked in conjunclion
with our parthers o ensure Thal this hos been undertaken in @ monner which preserves the customer
relationship. The close working relaliorship with our portners has enabled us to plon for the re-opening of our
venues with o strong content pipeiine due to the continued support from our contenl partners.,

£, Communities and the Envircnment

The Group understarnds that it has an impact on communities and we engage with them in a number ol
difterent ways including: local outreach progrommes, craative learning and comimunity partnerships amongsl
olhers. As well as having a central creative ovtreach function, each of our venues also has its own iniliatives
for community engagement, Due to our geographic spread across the regions of the UK, North Americg and
Germany, the Group is abile to respond to the specific needs and opportunities in each areaq.

We strive 1o reduce the environmeantal impact of our operations, and those of our supply chain partners,
through the responsible sourcing of resources, Key Inlffiatives include driving sustainable energy procurement,
instaling more energy efficient systems in our venues wherever possible. and diverting all waste from landfil,

4, Shgreholders

The Group is in regular didiogue wilh its shareholdars. The Group's shareholders are represented on the Board
and meet regularly throughout the year to discuss the key decisions to be made by the Group.

The close working relationship with the Group's shareholders has enabled the business to focus on key strategic
objectives which have been tet by the Boord and focus on long-term oppartunities that meet the
raquirements of the shareholders.

7. Financial Institulions

The Group regularly meets with its banks. There is an annual presentation of the Group's perfermance, regular
interim reporting and presentation of the Group's budget. This has enabled the Group to forge strong relations
with its bankers and given them a better understanding of the Growp's business and its performance.

A good relationship with the Group's bankers has enchiled the Group to negotiate a temporary adjustmeant
o certain financial covenants during the pericd when the Group's venues have had to be ¢losed due to the
COVID-19 reshictions.

20



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal decisions inode

We outline here some of the principal decistons made by the Group and how the directors have considered
various stakeholders.

1. COVID-19 Medasures

The findl month (Mareh) of FY20 was a peried of considerable unceriainty for all busingsses, ncluding ouss,
which warranted @ response 1o the unpracedentad impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. We recognised
quickly that Ihere weare lkaly to be significant implications of this pandemic on ocurselves, os well as ol other

location based entertalnment businesses, Qur marketing services busingss was alo impacied gs many of ils
clients are theatrical or location entertainment businesses, ke museums and gaileries. By 17 March 2020, we
had closed all of our venues worldwide, in order to protect show casts and crew members, our employeses

and visitors. Since then, we have diligently followed all government guidefines in each relevant geograpty.
I order to praserve liquidity and mitigate the impact of the fxed cost bose during the pandemic, the Birectors
of the Group have taken the folldwing measuras:

- created ¢ Business Contfinuity Committes, which has been focused on ¢risis mgnageament and key
decision making;

- ongoing engagement with all our stakeholdars, including ow sharsholders and lenders:

- implementation of bi-weekly cash flow forecasts 1o manage liquidity at a granular level throughout the

Group;
- rabust reopening scenaric medeling to drive decision making;
- proactve management of rescheduling shows to future dates to minimize the level of show cancetlations;

- asignificant element of the Group's cost base relates o woges and salaries. Where possible, and subject
to local reguictions, staffing lavels and hours worked have been reduced. Employees, including senior
management and directers, have also undertaken salary sacrifices. Govemment support both in the UK
in1he fom of the Job Retention Scheme and in Germany in the form of 1he Kurzarbest progrom has been
utlited to offset staffing cosls ihat cantinue 1o be incLred;

«  copital expenditure has been rephased and pricritized on essential maintenance; and

- actions have been taken 1o deler or permanently reduce payments of fixed costs ond unpaid varioble
costs from the pre-pandemic period, inciuding agreements with Government fiscal authorities on cerlain

tax poyments,

2]
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Whilst the Board has made decisions 1o deal with the immediate impact of the COVID-19 pandemic i1 has
alsoe made these declsions with regards to the Group’s longer term strategic objectives, For example, despite
fimits on cash reserves and initiatives 1o preserve fiquidity, tho Group hos continued to invest in COVID-19
secure measures that will need 1o be implemented for re-cpening our venues. Invesiment in key strategic
initictivas such as 1T and cyber security have continued,

2. Investment in digital copabilities to dive pre-show ond in-verue F&B

As O custorner tacing business it is importont to continuo to evolve to improve customer experience, The
members of Iha Board wers satisfied that the development and roli-out of o new digital food and beverage
sales chamnel was an important step for the Compony o {cke to improve the user experence for our
custamers. The akidlity 1o order food and beverage on-line prior to and during your visit would reduce queves
in the venue and mitigate crowding, reducing the risk of COVID-1? infection.

3. Investment in building CAPEX

Despite aur intlictivas to preserve liguidity during the period when our venues have been closed, the Board
has also considered it prudent to invest in our buildings where we can. Undertgking key repairs and
enhancemants, whilst ocur venuas have been closed has enabled us to ensure thal we do nol hove to
postpone or interrupt shows to carry out the works. A number of these projects ensure thal we provide g better

experignce for our customers and content partners so that they remain safeguarded for the future,
4, investing in diversity and Inclusion

Despite our venues being closed, the Board has considered it key 1o continue to foous on diversity and
inclusion both on and off the stage. Having taken intc account previows work undertaken by the Diversity
Working Group, the Board has considered it imporiand to expand vpon the inificlives already undertaken,
improving the diversily of voices within the Group will enhance the longer 1erm success of the Group os o

whole,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Anthany Ball, Non-Executive Direclor

anthany Ball served as Choirmon of infernotional Entertainment Holdings Limited from December 2016 to April
202} ond remains on the board as a non-executive director. He has been a senior advisor of Providence Equity
Partners since 201 3. He has had @ long and succeasshul caresr in the media and entertainment industries in the
UK and intarnationally, as chairman of Kabel Deutschiond frorm 2005 to 2013 and as CEQ of B3kyB. the largest
pay-TV birogdcaster in Europe, Prior ka this, he was the CEO of the News Coporolion/Libery Media joint
venture, Fox/Uberly Networks, which included the FX Networks, Fax Sports Nel and over 20 regional sgorts
chamnels throughout the U5 He i a nanrexecUtive director of 8T Group ond chairman of Parlland
Communications. Anthony received o MBA from Kingston University and hos been awarded honorary

doctorotes from both Middlesex University and Kingston University.
Mark Comell, Chief Executive Officer

Mark Comell was appointed Group CEQ of the Armbassador Theatre Group In May 2014, Prior to this he waos
Managing Director of Sotheby's Europe and preceding that, spent 10 years of LYMH, incleding President and
Chief Execulive Officer of Moel Hennessy USA and Chief Executive Officer of Krug Champagne, Mark hes
vast exparience inmanaging lgrge organisations. os well as successfully leading consumaer-orientated brands
in the UK, Europe and the USA.

Stephen Evans, Non-Executive Directar, Silver Loke Parthers

Stephen Evans joined Siver Lake in 2008 and i 0 Managing Oirector. Mr. Evans serves on the board of
Ambassador Theafre Group (ATG]. Endeavor and TES. He i o member of the audit commitlees of Gy
Football Group and UFC. He also previously served on the boards of Ancestry.corn and Serena Scifware, Inc.
Prior to joining Siver Lake, Mr. Evans was a Principal ot Cognetas, o pan-European private equity firm, where
he focused on ransactions across business and information services. Previously, Mr. Evans spent five years af
Bain 8, Company, bosed both in Europe ond the LS., including two years in 8ain's privale equity group. He is
o member of the execulive board of the EB Research Foundation. which is dedicated to finding o cure for
Epidermolysis Bulloso, d rare childran's diseose. Mr. Evans holds an M.A. and an M.PH from Cambridge
Universily, and anM.BA. from Harvard Business School,

David Leigh. Non-Execufive Director

Cavid Leigh joinad the nternationdl Entertainment Holdings Lirmited baard a5 g non-execulive director in
Qcicober 2015, He is CEO at Alexander Monn Solutions, a role he has held since November 2019, Prior to
joining Alexander Manih, David was CES of Study Group, and prior 1o that was CEC of SHL. Prior to SHE, he was
on the Executive Committee of Groupe Steria, with responsibility for Business Process Oubsourcing. David's
earier background was in private equity liFormation Group, a joint venture between Goldman Sachs, General
Atlantic Pariners and the Boston Consuiting Group), consulting {McKinsey & Co) and law Herbert Smith).
David hos on MA in Social and Pelitical Sciences from Cambridge University and o post-graduate legal

qualification from the College of Law, London,
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DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES {continved)

Alexander Mishanin. Non-Execufive Director, Providance Equily Pariners

Alexander Mishenin is Q vice prasident based at Providence Equity Partners. Prior ta joining Providence in 201 6,
M. Mishenin worked as an analyst in the investment banking group at L.P. Morgan in London, Mr. Mishenin
received a Masters in Finance and Law from Duisenberg School of Finance and a Bachelor of Business

Informatics from the Highear School of Economics, Moscow,
Jonothan M. Nelson, Executive Chairman, Providence Equity Partners

tr. Nelson was appointed Chairman of intemational Enteriainment Holdings Limited in Aprd 2021. Mr, Nalson
is execulive chairman and founder of Providence Equity Partners, the world's leading private equily fam
focused on media, communications, education and nformation investments. The firm monages funds with
$45 tilion in commitrnents and has invested in more than 170 companies globally since its inception.  Mr,
Nelson serves on the board of directors of Ambassador Theatre Group and The Chemin Group. He has also
sarved as a director of numerows other Providence portfolio companies, including Bresnan Communications,
Ercom pic, Huly, Language line, MotroNet {now ATAT Canada), MLS Media, Univision, VoiceStream Wirglass
[row T-Mobile US), Wamer Music Group, Western Wireless Corporation [now ATAT Com} and Yarkees
Entertainment and Sports Network {YES).

M. Mekon has been a private equily investor for 38 years. He founded Providence in 1989,  Previously, he
was a managing director of Naragansetl Capilal, inc. which he joined in 1983. At Namagansett Capital, Mr.
Netson specialized in privale equily invesimenis in media. M. Nelson recaived a Master of Business
Administration from the Harvard Business Schoal in 1983 and o Bachstor of Arts from Brown Lniversity in 1977.
He is o tnstee of Brown University, The Rockefeliar Universily and Institude for Advanced Study. He is a member
of ihe Board of Dean's Advisors ot Harvard Busingss School.

John Oldcorm, Chief Financial Officer

John Qldcom was appeinted as CFO of International Enfertainment Holdings Limited on 1 July 2028, Prior to
this John spent three vears s the Group CFO of Argent Faods, a £750rm tumaover conglomerate of food-related
business. At Argent he oversaw reiclionshins with lendess and other key slakeholders, played akey role inthe
group navigating successfully through the pandemic, and led four delt raises / refinancings, and significant
Comporate and M&A activity, Pricr 1o joining Argent in 2018, John spent 25 years working in prafessional
practice with Arthur Andersen, Deloite and, latterly, KPMG, the last 16 vears as a pariner. He co-led the
cracion and rapid growth of a dedicoted, mulli-dsciplinary, private equity practice serving giobal PE cllenls

and their portfolic companies across Europe, typically in a fast-paced M&A environment.
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Gearge Osborne, Non-Executive Director

George Oshorne joined the board of IEH s g non-exacutive director in April 2021. He & & pariner at Robey
Warshaw LLP, Prior to his curant rales, Gaorge was an MP for sixtean years, the Chancelicr of the Exchequer
[2010-2018) and First Secretary of State (2015201 4], and edited the Londan Evening Standard from 2017-X520.
George s chalr of the notfor-profit Northern Powerhouse Partnenhip and @ Lecturer at Stanford University,
Califormic. In 2016 he was made a Compornion of Honaur by Har Majasty the Queen.

Robert Svdo, Non-Execulive Director, Providence Equity Pariners

Robert Sudao is @ managing director at Pravidence Equity Partners. He is also a director of 8ité, Closer Still Media,
H3E24, MOsMovil and LaCentrale. Prior to joining Providance £quity Partners in 2004, Robert worked o5 an
analyst for Goldman Sachs in mengers and acquisibons ond corporate finance. He received a Diploma in
Business Administration from HHL Leipzig Graduate Schoodl of Managament,

Andrew Tisdale, Non-Execulive Direclor, Frovidence Equity Partners

Andrew Tikdale i a Senior Managing Director and Co-Head of Europe at Providence Equity Pariners. He ks
atso a Director of Chime Communication, Closer Still Media, HSE24, TES Global and Noded.  Prior to joining
Providence Equity Partners in 2008, Andrew wors global co-head of the media and communications group
and a member of Morgar Stanley's management committee for investment banking. Andrew received a
Master of Business Adminisiration from the University of North Carcling ot Chapel Hil and a Bachelor of Arts
from Vanderbilt University. He currently serves an the Space Innovalion Council at the California institute of
Technology and, the Board of Advisors for the Yale Schogl of Drama, and Vanderbilt Univedsity's College of
Ans and 3ciences.

Micha#! Vervisch, Non-Execulive Director, frovidence Equity Partners

Michaél Vervisch is o managing director ot Providence Equity Partners, He & olso a director of Noded. wdr
vervisch originally joined Frovidenca in 2014, In the post he worked as a principal at Clayton Qubilier & Rice,
as an associnte director at K Investment Partners and as an associate at McKinsey & Campany. Mr. Vervisch
received a Master of Business Administration from Harvard Business School and holds a Master of Science in
Electrical Engineedng and a Master of Science in Applied Econamics fram the Katholieke Universiteit Leuven
in Belgium,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report and the audited financial stalements for the perod ended 27 March 2021.
The directors consider the gnnual report and Fnancial statements 1o comply substanticlly with all aspects of
the "Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency in Privale Equity™.

DRECTORS

The directors who served during the pericd and to the date of signing the financlal statements [except os
notad) were!

Anthony Ball

Mark Comedl

Stephen Evans Appointed & October 2020
Sinisa Krnic Resigned & Oclober X120
David Leigh

Alexander Mishenin Appointed & October 2020

Jonathan Nelson Appointed 27 Aprt 2021
John Oldcom Appeinted 1 uly 2021
George Usborne Appeinted 27 April 2021
Robert Sudo

Shantae Teo Resigned 1 July 2021
Aandrew Tisdale

Michoel Vervisch Appointed 6 Qclober 2020

The biographies of the curent directors are presented on poge 23 to 25

The Group i majority owned by Providence Equity Partners through ifs investment funds, Providence Equity
Partners Vil-A {P and Providence Vil Global Holdings LP. Providence Equity Partners is g global alternative
investment firm established in 1989 focused on educolion, media. communications, and information
investrents, The firmn’s private eguity platform specializes in sector-focused buyout tronsactions and growth
capilal investments. Providence Equity Partinens made its investrant in the Group through IE Luxco 5.4.rl
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company has moade qudlifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were

made during the period and remain in force at the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The 1ss for the period after taxation amounted to £139.0 milion [2020; £25.9 milllion).

No dividends have been pald duing the curent period [2020; ENB). No dividends are proposed inrespect 1o
the current petiod.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the impoct of COVID-1? on the Group's trading
continues 1o be assessed and is subject to rapidly chaonging extemat factors, including evolving government
1esponses to control the spread of the virus and ongoing changes in customer senfiment lowards attending

fve emtertfamment events,

Due to the measures taken by govemments worlawide to control the COVID-17 outbreck, the kve
enterfainment industry came to @ standstit from the second hallf of March 2020, with all our venues being

closed for operations.

Prior to¢ mid-sarch 2020, the Group had traded well with a programming schedule of highity successful shows
supperting strong gperational performance across all of its territories. We were in o streng financial pesition
with all covenants under the terms of aurioons being mel. Unfortunatealy, the closure of our venues has resulted
in ¢ sharg drop in fumaver, Our marketing senvices businesses arée Qiso experiencing o drog in furmover gs mony
of aur customers are in the iive entedainment and cullural & heritage sectors [museums, galleries, zoos); all of
which have had restrictions on their operalions during COVID-19. Whilst there has bean a coresponding
reduction in variable costs as a result of the closure of our venues, the Group continues to have to fund its

fixed cost base.

in arder fo preserve liguidity and mitigate the impact of the fixed cost base during the pondemic, the Directors
of thae Group hove taken a number of measures os set out on page 21 of this repont.

The Graup has net curent liabilities of £63.4 million [2020: £168.7 million) and net assets of £61.1 million [2020:
£42.0 milion} ot the period-end date. Net current fabifities include advanced ticket sales of £113.8 miliion
[2020: £142.4 million)., These represant ficket sales for shows thot have yet to maiure, with a perlion of this
omount due to flow 1o the Group. Excluding advance ticket sqles and nonsefundable grants, The Group has
fiabilities due within ong year of £144.2 milkon [2020: £187.0 milion) which are exceeded by curent assets of
£227.7 miion, {2020: £204.5 million},

The Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow accounts, in s bark accounts of £182.9 milicn as
at the reporting date. in addition, the Group has received an equity commitmeant from its shareholders, which

is presently undrawn.

The Group operates and robust, bi-weekly cash and cash flow forecasting process covering the period to 31
December 2022

Sensifivities are run to reflect diffesent scenarios for when theatres might or will be gble to re-ppen in the months
following the dote of the approval of these financial statements. This s done to identify risks 1o iquidity and
covenant compliance and enable management to formulate appropriate and timely mitigation sirategies.

Thesea sensitivitias include severe, but plausible, downside scenarios.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Based on these forecosts and other factors which may impact the Group's future liquidity position, the
Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on G going concem basis,

The reasons for this are as follows:

- The Group holds £433.0 million of commifted facilities which are subject to net leverage ond liguidity
covenants, There is a reduced risk of default on the net leverage covenont, due to a facility amendment
which allows for an adiustment o the net leverage covenant whilst theatres are closed by governments
dus to COVID-19 and during an agreed ramp up period post re-opening. The Group is also subject to a

rminimum lquidilty covenant which is foracast 1o be met for the next 12 months; and

- Adequate fiquidity & in place for the next 12 months bosed on the foreseeable scenarios for theatres, in
terms of re-opening dates, polentiol resfactions on how our venues can oparate ke, secial distancing
requirements}, and the level of demand from gudiences. Al present, govamment policy onreopening of
theatrical venues and socict distancing requirements varies acrass the countries and regions that the
Group operates in.

The Board's confidence in the Group's forecasts, its chifity to monage its liquidily requirerments, confidencs in
the continued support of our sharenolders, and the long termn potential of the business lorms the basis of our

rpreparation of the financial statements on o going concern basis.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT {conlinved)

MATIERS COVERED IN THE SIRATEGIC REPORT

Certgin matters {post balance sheet events, future develocpments, principal risks and uncerlainties and
employee matfers) are discussed within the Strategic Report and inconporated into the Directors' Report by
refarence.

AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that:

- so for as the direclor is aware, there is no relevant gudit information of which the Compony's auditor is
unaware; and

- the diroctor has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken as a director in order to migke
himself/herself aware of any relevant cudit infarmnation gnd to estabiish that the Compony's auditor is
aware of that infermation.

This confimation is given and should be inferpreted in accordonce with the provisions of s418 of the
Companles Act 2004,

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office os auditor and a resoiviion 1o reappeint them
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved and authanised for issue by the Board of Directars on 21 July 2021 and signed on ifs
bhehaif

N

John Qldcorn

Director

Registered ofiice
28 51 George Street, London
WIS 2FA, United Kingdom
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The: directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in gccordance

with applicable low and regulations.

Compony law requires the directors 1o pregare Fnancial statements for each financial period. Under that law
the directors have elected to prepare the financial statermnents in accordance with Intemational Financial
Repusting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied thal they give a us and fair view of the state of
offoirs of the Company and of the profit of loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these finoncial
statements, lilemational Accounting Standord 1 requires that directors:

- picpery select and apply accounting policies;

- prasent information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, refiable,
comparable and understandable information;

- provide gdditional disclosures when complionce with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insulicient
to enabile users to understand the impact of particular transactions, ather events and conditions on
the entity’s financial position and financiol performance; and

- moke an assessment of the Company's ability to ¢ontinue as 0 going concern,

The directors are responsitile for keepling adequate aoccounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's fransactions and cdisclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financiat pasition of the
Company gng enable them to enswre that the Fnancial statements comply with the Cornpanies Act 2005,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasanable steps
for the prevention and detection of froud and other regularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenonce and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website. Legisiahion in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemingation of financial statements may differ from legislation in other juisdictions.

we confirm that to the bast of our knowledge:

- he Rnancial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting fromework,
give a lrue and fair view of the assebs, liakoilities, financial position and profit o loss of the Company

and the ynderakings included in the consolidation taken as g whaole;
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (continued)

- the Strategic Report Includss a fair review of the devetopment and performance of the business and
the paosition of the Company and the ynderakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with o description of the pancipal risks and uncertainties that they lace; and

- the annudlreport and financial statgments, taken os o whels, are fair, balanced and undenstandable
and provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance. business
model and strategy.

Tnis responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and is signed on its behalf

oy

John Cldecann
Director

£,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Repor on the audlt of the financlal stalements

Qpinion
In our opinion the fingncial siatements of Intemational Entertainment Holdings Limited {the ‘parent company’)

and its subsidiaries [the ‘group'):

« give a frue and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 27 March
202t and of the group's toss for the year then ended;

 have been propery prepared in accordance with intemational accounting standards in conformity with
the raquiremants of the Companies Act 2006; and

»  have been prepared in accordonce with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

*» the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

« the consolidated and company statements of Fnancial position;
s the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity;
+ the consolidated statement of cashflows; and

« therelgted notes 1 to 33,

The finoncical repoding framework that has been gpplied in their preparation is applicable law ond
international accounting stondards in conformity with the requirements of the Companias act 2006,

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with iInfemational Standards on Auditing {UK) [ISAs {UK)) anct
applicable law, Qur responsitifities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities

for ther audit of the financial statemants section of our report.

We are independent of the group aind the parent comparny i accordance with the ethical requirements that
are reievant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the
'FRC's') Ethical Stondard, and we have fulliled ow other ethical responsibilities in aceordance with thase
requirements, We befieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and oppropriote to provide

a basis for our opinion,

Canclusions relating te golng concermn

in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the golng concern basis of

accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's and parent company's ability to continug to adopt

the going concem basis of accounting included:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

+ an gssessment of the endities financing facilities including nature of facilfies, repayment terms and
covenants:

+ areview of management’s farecasts, including challenging management's key assumptions such os the
recpening dates of theatres, the gccupancy levels, the bose lovel of operating costs, the cash flow to
achieve re-opening. and the refund rate on advanced sales;

« an assessment over the amount of headroom in the forecasts {cash and covenants) an a base case and
under managemeant's sensitivity anolysis of an extended dark period or a reduction in occupancy rates;
and

« review over the modei ysed 10 prepare the forecaosts, testing of clerical accuracy of those forecasts and

our assessment of the histarical accuracy of farecasts prepared by management.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to evends
ar conditiorns thal, individuatly or collectively,. may cast significart doubt on the group's and paren!
company's ability 10 continue as a going concem for @ period of at least twelve months rom when the

financiol statements are gutherised for issue.

Our responsibiiities and the responsibilitios of tha directors with respect fo going concem are described in the

relevant sections of this report.

Other iformaticon

The other inforrnation comprisas the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our guditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information conlained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the finoncial statements does not cover the other information and.
excepl 1o the exient otherwise explicitty stated in our repoart, we do not express any form of asswrance
conclusion theseon,

Cur responsibility is 1o read the other information and. in doing 5o, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtdined In the course of the qudi, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such malerial inconsistencies or apparent materiol
misstatemants, we are required to detemmine whether this gives rise to ¢ material misstaterment in the financiol
statements themselves. £, based on the work we have performed, we concludé that there is a materniol

misstaterment of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing fo report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

Respensibiities of directors

As explained more fully in the direclors' responsibililies stotement. the directors are responsible for the
preparalion of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a frue and fair view, and for such
intemal control as the directors determing is necessary to engble the prepoaration of financial stoterments that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent
company's akility to continue as a going concem, disclosing. as applicahle, motters related to going concem
and wsing the going concern hasis of accounting uniess the directors either intend to liquidate the group or
the parent company or o ceqse oparations. or have no redlistic altemnative but to do so.

Audiior's responsibilties for the audi of the finonclal statements

Qur chjectives are to abtoin reasonable assuronce about whether the financiai statements as o whole are
fres from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an ouditor's report that includes
ow opinion. Reasonable assurance i a high level of asswrance, but s net a guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordance with BAs [UK] will atways detect a materal misstatement when it exishs.
Misstaterments con onse Fom fraud or error and are considerad matenal I, individudily or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to infience the economic decisions of Users taken on 1he basis of these

financial statements,

A further descrption of our responsipilities for the audit of the financiol statements is located on the FRC's

website at! www frg o uk /auditonresporsitilites. This description forms part of our guditor's report.

Extent to which the audlt was considered capabie of detecting Ireguiarities, inciuding raud

imeguiarities, including fraud, are instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in iine with our responsibiliies, outlined above, to detect materiat misstaternents in respect of
ireguiarities, including froud. The extert to which cur procedures are capable of detecting iregularities,

incluciing fraud is detailed bealow,

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its contral environment, and reviewed the group's
docurmnentation of their palicies and procedures ralating to froud and complianc e with laws and regulations.
We qlso enquired of management about their own identilication and assessmant of the risks of imegularities.

we obtained on understanding of the legal ond regulatory frumework that the group operates in, and
identifisd the key laws ond regulgtions that:
s had a direct effect on the datermination of meterial amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included UK Companiss Act, IFRS, CJRS and tax legisiation; and
s donot have a direct effect on the financiol statements but compliance with which may be fundamentat
io the group’s ability to operate or to aveid o malstial penalty:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

We discussed among the aud sngagaement team. including significant component audit teams ond refevant
intemci specialists such os tax, and valuations specidiists regarding the opportunities and incentives thal may

exist within the crganisation for raud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As aresuit of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud or non-compliance with lcaws
and regulalions in the following areas, and our specific procedures petformed o address them are described
Deiow:

= Judgement and estimction, which give dse {0 the nisk of froud are required in the preparation of
discounted cash flow [ 'DCF] modelk used to determine whether there i an impaiment of goodwill and
other assets. The same DCF are appled to suppart the camying vaive of the Group's venues, The fraud
risk arises with the estimates made over the fulure trading assumptions, specifically the assumed date of
venues re-opening and the discount rate applied. We have challenged management’s assumptions and
comsidered both supporting o conbradictory evidence whilst aiso engaging specialist input into the audit
of the discount rate In each region. We hove also corsidered the appropriatenass of tho sensitivities
performed by management and the disclosures thereof.

» The Group has utilised a number of Covid-19 related govemment support schemes. The nature, eligibility
and complexity of the schemes varies between territories. We identified a fraud risk in relation to the
Group's applicaticns under these schemes given the complexity and reduced time period in which the
schemes were estabiished, specifically pinpointed to the Job Retention Schemes in the UK and Germany.
The: risk is that amaounts claimed by the Group could be intentionally, o unintentionally, misstated which
could lead to repaymerts, fines ond reputalional damage. We have corsidered the design ond
implementation ot the controls management instigated to ensure the accuracy of applications and
recording of assistance received. With the invotvement of our specicfist leam we have inspected source
documentgtion and, for a sample of claims recalculated amounts claimed and traced payments o the
HMRC claims portal and the nank receipt of funds ensuring consistency with amounts recorded in the
{inancial statements. We have also reviswed the disciosures made in respect of government assistance.

In common with all cudits uncler I5As (UK}, we are also required to perfarm specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management ovaride. In addressing the risk of fraud through management averride of controls, we
tested the appropriatenass of joumal entrias and other adjustments: assessad whether the judgements made
in making accounting gstimales are indicative of a potential bias: and evaluated the business rationale of
any sighificant fransachions that are unusual or cutside the nomal course of business.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

in addition ta the above, our procedures 1o respond to the risks identified included the following:
+  reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing fo supporting documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevant lows and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial

statements;

+« pearforming analytical proceduras 1o identify any vnusual or unexpedcted relationships that may indicate
risks of material misstaternent due to fraud:
+  enguiring of management conceming actual ond potential fitigation and claims, ond instances of non-

conmpliance with lows and regulations; and

o« reading minutes of meetngs of those charged with govermnance and reviewing correspondence with
HMRC.

Repoit on other legal and regulafory requirements

Opinlons on othar matiers prescribed by the Compuanies Act 2004

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the coursz of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the ftinancial year for which the
financial stataments are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report ond the directors’ report have been prepared in accordanca with applicable legal

requiraments,

n the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
ervironment obigined in the course of the audit, we have nhet identified any maternial misstatemants in the

strotegic report or the directors' report,

Malters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Cormpanies Act 2006 we ara required to report in respeact of the following matters if, in our opinion:

«  adequate accounting records have not baen kept by the parent company, or returns adaedquate for owr
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us! or

+« the parenl company financial statements are not in agreemeant with the accounting records and refurns:
or

s cerain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by aw are not made:; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we raquire for our audit,

We have nothing 1o report in respect of these mattars,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {(continued)

Use of our report

This repont it made solely to ihe company’s members, as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of
the Companies Acl 2006. Our audit werk has been undertaken so thot we might state o the campany's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose, To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsicity to anyono other than the
company and the company’s members s a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
hove foomed.

- AP Y.
Helen Wildman ACA {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
London
United Kingdom

21 July 2021
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Note 52 week period 52 week pericd
ended 27 March anded 28 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Revenue e | 41,841 476,747
Cost of soles {19,208) {18%,248)
Gross profit 22,433 287,499
Administrotive expenses (116.793) (284,575)
Share of resulls of associates and ioinl ventures 11 {249) (702)
Operating [icss) fprofil 4 [94.609) 2,232
Fingnce income 7 1,546 1,344
Finance costs 8 {54,072) (37,473
Loss belfore tax (147,135} {33,207)
Taxation b B 183 7.982
Loss for the period (138,952 {25.925)
Attributable to: o
Owmars of the Compony {138,%52) {25,925]
Comprehensive income
Lass For the petiod {138,952} {25.925)
ftemns that may be reclossified subseguently 1o
prafit or loss:
txchange differences on fransiation of foreign {422 5,195
aperations
tems that will not be reclassified subsequenly 1o
profit or loss;
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 274 241
chligolicns
Talal comprenensive 10ss for the pericd {132.170) [20,489)
Atributoble fo.
Owners of the Company [132.170} (20,489}
Tola! comprehensive loss for the peried (139,170} [20.489}

All activity relates to continuing operations.

There are no materidl differences between the losses for the periods disclosed above and their historical cost

equivalents. The gccompanying notes form part of ond are to be read in conjunction with these finoncial

statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Compaony
27 March 28 March 27 March 28 March
2021 2020 21 2020
£000 £000 £'000 £000

Investments 104,33 2178 4,356 413,835 262,575
Interests in assaciates and joint venlures 11,33 3,528 1.51% - -
Goodwil 12 342,884 372,730 - -
Intanglble assets 12 18,609 14,328 - -
Propeny, plant and equipment 13 389.47% 430,905 - -
Deferred tox assets 22 17.316 11,567 - -
Non-curent trade and cther receivabies 16 22431 23,318 - -
Non-cuntent assets 814,425 840,723 413.835 262,575
Inventories 14 505 1,044 - -
Investments in shows 15 2,393 3,794 - -
Trade ang other receivables 14 39380 2,554 - -
Cuash and cash equivalents 17 185,432 1392.065 144 -
Current assels 227,690 206,457 146 -
Total assets 044,115 1067180 413,981 242,575
Trade and other pavables 18 189,57t 260,814 11,044 10,700
Borrowings 19 69.370 42,370 - -
Obligations under Fnance leases 20 16,393 19,474 -
Provisions 21 1 5.801 25483 - -
Currant lablities 291,135 375143 11,045 10,900
Net current llabliifies {63.445) (148,487} (10.%00)  (10,900)
Bomowings 19 514,037 454,670 - -
Obligations under fnance legses 20 149,693 157,704 -
Deterred tax liabilities 22 28,198 28,699 - .
Non-current llabiltles 691,728 643,075 - -
Total llabllifles 983,063 1018218 11,046 10,900
Not assets 41,052 48,942 402,935 251,675
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
{continued)

AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Compaony
27 march 2021 28 march 2020 27 March 2021 28 rdarch 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £000

Shara capital 23 414 262 414 262
Share premiurn account 402,572 251,414 402,521 251.413
Transiation reserve 26,991 27.433 - -
Accumulated deficit £348,.575] {230,197} - -
Total equity aftributabla to &1.052 48,962 402,935 251,675

awners of the Company

The Company has taken odvantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act
2004 rot to present its own Statement of Comprehensive income ond related notes. The result for the year
decit with in the financial statesments of the Company was Enil {2020: £n).

The financial statements of were approved by the Boord of Directors and authorised for issue on 21 July 2021,

They were signed on its behalf by:
John Cldcomn

Registered Number 08769274
Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Net cash {used In)/generated from operating activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of infangible assets
Net recoupment fFom shows

Net cash used In investing _q;:ﬂyﬂié_s

New shareholder laans maised

Praceeds from share issue

Repayments of bonk borowings

Rapayment of obligations vnder finance leases
interest received

Interest poid

Nel cash generated by finoncing activities

Netl increase in cash and cosh equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at baginining of period
Net increase in cash ond cash equivalents
Foreign exchange {lass) fgain on cosh

Cash and cash equivalents ot end of pariod

Forthe 52
week
period
ended 27 For the 52 week
March penod ended 28
2021 March 2020
£'000 £000
24 {108,52¢) 62,235
{10,389} 40,923}
{4.363) {13,144)
1,401 1,855
113,350 |52.212)
135,000 692,370
151,280 .
(85.500} -
(11,094} {18,028)
1,544 22
{20,994} (22.917)
170,216 28.447
48,339 38,470
139,045 98,956
48,333 38,470
_ (1972 1.439
17 185,432 139,065

The accompanying nates form part of and are to be read in conjunclion with thase financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WELK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Generdl intarmalion

internationa?  Entertainment Holdings Umited (the "Group”) s a private Company limited by shares,
incovporated in the United Kingdom under the Cormpanies Act and is registered in Englond andd Wales. The
address of the registered office is 25 5t. Gaorge Streat, London, WIS 2FA, United Kingdaom,

The principal qclivities of the Company and its subsidiaries {the Group)] and the noture of the Group's

opstations are set outinin the slrulegic report on pages | to 22.

Thase finonciat staternents are resented iIn pounds sterling because that is the curency of the primary

gconomic environment in which the group cperates.
Adoption of new and revised standards

Amendments to IFRSs thal gre mandalorily effective for the curent pericd

in the curent year, the Group has applied amendments (o iFRSs issued by the international Accounting
Standards Board {IASE} that are randatorly effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1

January 2020,
The adoption of these aomendments in the year did not have amaterial mpact an the fnancial statermerts.
New and revised IFRSs In Issue but not yet effective:

At the date oF authorisation of thase fnoncial statements the Group has not appilied the faltowing new and
revised IFRSS that have been issued but are not vet effeciive:

- Amendments to 1AS | - Classification of liabilities as curent or Non-current
Amandments 10 |AS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendments 1o IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates
- Amendments to 1AS 12 — Defered Tox related to Assets and Liabilities
- Amendments ta 1AS 16 — Properly, Plant and Equibment; Proceeds before intended use
- Amandments to |AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of fulfiling o contract
- Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
IFRS 14— COVID-19 Related Rent concessions
- IFRS 17 « msurance contracts
Annugl improvernents 16 IFRS standards 2018 — 2020 (IFRS 1, IFRS 2, IFRS 14, J1AS 41)

The Diractors are curently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these standards, amendments and
interpretations but do not expect them to have a material impact on the Group operation or results
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiicont accounting policlas

Bosis of accounting

The fnancial statements haove been prepared in accordance with Intematicnal Finoncial Reporting
Stondards [IFRSs). The financial skatements have alsao been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by
the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Arficle 4 of the EU 1AS
Reguiation.

The Company has taken advontoge of the exemplion cantained within section 408 of the Companies Act
2004 not to prosent its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and relatad notes. The profit for the vear

dealt with in the finoncial statements of the Company was £mil {2020; £nil),

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, excep? for finandial instruments
that are measured af fair values at the end of eachreporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services,

Fair valve 5 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer g liability in an orderly
fransaction between market participants af the measurement date, regardless of whether that price s
dirachy observable or astimated using another valualion technique. (n estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes into cccount the characteristics of the asset or labitity if market participants
would take those charactesstics info aecount whean pricing the asset or licbility at the megsurement date.
Fair value for measurement ondfor disclosure puposes in these consolidoted financial stalements s
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of 1IAS 17, and measurements that have some simiarities 1o
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realsable value in 1AS 2 of value Inuse in 1AS 34,

Operating results

The operating results include transactions up to and including the Saturday on of preceding 31 March of
each period.

Buosis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entitiss
controled by the Company [its subsidianes}. Conirol is achieved when the Compary has the power over
the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to varicble retums from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to use its power to affect its retums.,

The resuts of subsidiares acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the Consoidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income rom the dote the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsiciiary,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consoldatlon (confinued)

Al intragroup assels and liabilities, equity, income, expensas and cash flows relating to transactions

betwean the members of the Group are eliminated on consalidakion.

Non-controling interests in subsidianes are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those
intarasts of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership interasts are indticlly measured at the:
non-contralling interests' propartionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identificle net ossets.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amaount of ron-contraliing interests & the amount of thosa interasts
at inltial recognition plus the nor-controling interesls® share of subsequent changes in equity,

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidianes are accounted for using the acguisition method, The consideration transterred in
a business combination is measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

Goodwil is measiwwed o8 the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred. the amount of any non-
controling interest in the aoguiree. and the far value of the acquirer's praviously held equity interest in the
acquire {f ony) over the net of tha acguisition-dote amounts of the idenlificbie assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed,

Contingent consideration is meawured at its acquistion-date foir volue and included as part of the
considerofion transterred in g business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration
that qually as measurement period odjustments are odiusted rekrospectively, with comesponding
adjustments against goodwill, Maasuremen!t perod adjustrents are adiusimeants thot arise from additional
information chitcined dwing o maximum pedod which carnet excesd one yveor from the acquisifion date
aboul facts and circumstances that existed af the acquisiion date, Where chonges occur to contingent
consideration that is classified as on asset or liabiity, thal do not qualify as measurement perlod adiusiments,
the contingent consideration is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates with the comesponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or ioss, To the extent that the terns of contingent consideration arangements
include sarvice conditions, consideration is freated as @ cost of employment and s recognised cver the

pericd o which tha service conditions relate,
The Group reports provisional amounts uniil the measwerment perodis completed.
Invesimeanis

investrmants in subsidiaries are valued af cost less provision for impairment.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signlicant accounting policles (continved)

Assoclates and joint arangements

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither o subsidiory nor
on Inferest in a [oint venture, Significant influence is the power to participate in the finoncial and operafing
policy decisions of the nvestes but is not control o joint control over those policies.

A joint amongement is an arangement of which twe or more porhies have joint control. Joint controt is the
contraciually agreed sharing of confroi of an arangement, which exists onty when decisions about the
relevant octivities |i.e. activities that significantly aftect the retums of the arrangernent require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Joint arangements are classiied into twao typss - joint oporations and

joint ventures.

A joinl operation is a joint arangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arangement (ie,
joint operators) hove rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arangement. A joint
venturg i @ joint arangement whereby the parties that have joint contral of the arangement {i.e. joint
ventures) hove righls fo the net assets of the arargement, The type of joint arangement is qssessed by
considering its rights and obligations, by considering the structure and legal form of the arrangement, the
confractual terms aogreed 1o by the parties to the arangement and, when relevant, other facts and
circurmstances,

The assets and liabilties {ond relaled reverwes and expenses) of joint operations are recognised in proportion
to the interes! in the arangement.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorpordted in thase financial
statemnents using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an assecicate
is initiclly recognised in the consolidated $tatement of Financial Position at cost and adpusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. wWhen
the Group's share ol losses of an assaciate exceeds the Group's interest in that assaciate (which includes
ony long-term interests that, in subslance, form part of the Group's net invastment in the associale), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Adallional losses are recognised only to the extont
that the Groun has incured legal or constructive obligations or made payments an behalf of the associate.

Goodwill

Goodwil is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at legst arnually,

For the purpose of impairment testing. goodwill is dllocated to each of the Group's cosh-generating units
[CGUs) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been alocoted are tested for impaiment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impdaired. If the recoverable omount of the cash-generating unit is less 1han its carrying
omowunt, the impairment loss i allocated firs fo reduce the canying amount ¢f any goodwill allacated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
urit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwlll is not reversed in a subsequent pediod.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (continved)

Goodwilf [continved)

Pricr to the cument year the Group's twa Genman subsiciiaries, BB and Mehr, were haated s separate CGLUs.
This poiicy has been changed to recognise BB and Metr as one combinad Mainland Europe CGU, dligning

tha CGUs to the management's divisional view of the Group's aclivities.
Impairment of nen-current assels

At each balonce sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its fangible and intangible assets
to determing whather there is any indication that those ossats have suffered an impairment 1oss. Goodwill is

reviewed for impairment ot legst annually.

Far the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating unifs or

groug of units that are expected te benefit from that business cornbination.

An impdirment Ioss s recognised if the carying omount of the asset under consideralion exceads its
recoverable amount, Recoverable amaunt is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and volue in use.
in assessing value in use, the estimated future caosh flows are discounted ta their present value using @
discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the fisks specific to

fhe assetf.

If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is (a5 than the camying amount of the unit, the
irnpairment loss is allocated first 1o reduce the camying amaunt of any goodwill and then o the olher assels
of the unit prorata on the basis of the camying amoun! of each assel in the umt. An impairment loss

recognised for gooawill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
invastments in shows and co-preduction amrangements

Investrments in shows are stated at cost less amounts recaouped to date, and provisions for any amounts

which the directors do not believe are recoverable.

Production arangements are reviewed on o production-by-production basis and tregted based on the

principies outlined above as either o subsidiary, an associate or joint venture or joint arangement,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles {continved)

Property, plant and equipment

Properly, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and accumulatod impairments.
Dapreciation is provided at rates calculated to wite off the cost of fixed assats, less thair estimated residual
value, on a straight-ine bask over their expected useful lives as follows:

Fraehold buildings 40 to 50 years
Leasehold property Shorter of leasehold tlerm and useful life of 40 to 50 vears
Fixtures and fittings 4 1o 10 years, or over the period to 1he end of the lease of the thealre

if this Is shorter
IT Equipmenl 3to S5ysars

No depreciafion is gpplied to the cost of assets in the course of consfruction. Treehold land s not
depreciated.

Intangible assels

Intangible assets all have finite ves and are caried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment 1osses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-ine basks over their estimated
useful lives and is recognised in Ihe administrative expenses line item.

The omortisation period for software is 4 years. The estimated iife of other intangible assets s considerad on

an asset-by-asset bask and is up to 10 years.
Inventory

Inventory is valved ot the lower of cost and nel redlisable value aftor making due ollowance for chsolete

and slow-maving items,
Financlal Inskruments

Financial assets and financial iabllities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of financial Position
when the Group becames o party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument and ore initiclly measured
of foir value. Transaction costs 1hal are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial licbilities, other than finoncial gssets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
[“"FVTPL"). are added to, or deducied kom, the fair value of tha financial assets or financial liabilities on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributoble to the acguisttion of financial assets or financial liobilities

ol fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles {¢onlinued)

Finoncial instruments (continved)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash sguivalents comprise cash balances, calt deposils and escrow-type accounts. Bank
overdrofts that ore repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are
included as ¢ compenent of cash and cash equivaients for the pumpose of the Staternent of cash flows.

trade receivables ond accrued jncome

Trade receivables ond acorued income are classified os foans and receivables ond are measured at
omorlised cost using the effective inferest method, less any impoirment. Since trade receivables and
accrued income are typically due within one year, and the sffect of any effective interest is immaterial, 1his

eguates to inifial canying value less any impairment.
Bomrowings

Loars and Bomowings are initially measwed af foir value, net of tfransaction costs. They are subsequenity
measured al amartiied cott using the efleclive interest method, with interest expense recognised on on
effective yield basis. The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a finoncial
liobility and of dllocoted interast expensa over tha relevant period. Tha effective interest rate s the rate that
exactly discounts sstimated future cash payments through the axpected He of the finandcial Eabillty, or,
wherg appropriate, @ sharter period to the net carmying amaunt on iniicl recagnition.

Trade payables and accruals

Trade payablas and accrugls are classified s loans and receivables and are measured at amontised cost
wiing the effective interast method. Since frode payables and accruals are typically due within gne vear,

and the effective of any affective interast is immaterian, this equates to infliol camying value.
Finoncial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance contracts.

Deforred iIncome

Amounts receaived by the Group for senvices performed in fulure dre classitied as defermed income and
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income when the senvice is performed.

Retirement benafils

Paymants to detined conirbution retiremeant benefit schemes are recognised os an expense when
employess have rendered service entitling them to the contributions, Differences between contibulions
payable in the pariod and canfributions actually paid are shown as either aocrugls or prepayments in

tha balance shesl.
5!
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiflicant accounting policles [confinued)

Revenue

Revenue is recognised at the faF value of the consideration received or receivable ond represents
amounts recaivable for goods and sarvices provided in the nomal course of business. net of giscounts,

VAT and olher sales-ralated taxes, Revenue for the Croup comprises severd elements, including:
Venue rentat and produc lion-refated services

Charges to productions in respect of services provided {such as venue rental and staffing) are recognised
net of sales taxes as those services are provided.

Revenue From productionrelaled services is recognised al the dote of performance of the show, undil
which time it is held on the Statement of Financial Pasition as Deferred income,

Fromohonal services

the Group acts as promaoter for self-produced shows and shows produced by third paries. Revenue from
these services is recognised ot fair vaive of consideration received, net of sales taxes, at the date that the
pramoliondl services are provided

Morketing services
Revenue from the provision of marketing services s recognised at the fair value of the consideration

received of receivable, The fair value of consideration takes into account trade discounts, setilement
discounts and volume rebates. Morketing services revenue |s recognised net of sales taxes over the period
that services are provided, or as recoverable costs are incured, in accordonce with the tenms of the
contractugl agreement. When recarded markeling services revenueg exceeds tha amounts invoiced to
clienl. the excess is classified as accrued income.

Ticket scies

Revenue from tickat sqles represants the revenue eamed from commissions, credit card charges and
similar charges. This revenue is recognised ol the date the ticket is sold.

Revenue from ticket sales whese the Group is acting as seling agent (whether for its own theatres or for
other UK venues] includes booking fees. cammissions, and similar addiliondl incame charged at the point
of sale. These amounts are recognised net of any sales taxes o the fransaction date. Such revenus is
recognised as an agent rather than principal transaction, and so excludes the face value of the lickets
sold.

Retail sales

Revenue from concession sales to customers at the Group's venues is recognised net of sales taxes af the
point of saie.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERION ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1.  Significant accounfing poficies (continuad)

Revenva {continved)

Other ievenue

The Group provides various other services on an ad hoc basis, all of which are relafed ta its principal activity.
Related revenue is recogrnised at {air value over the period thot such services are perfarmed and the

peformarce obiligations ore met.
Jomn! operotions

In ralation to co-procuction arangaments, whegre a controling or joint oparation interest is held, revenus
includes the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no controling interest is held fumover
reprasents net come frorm productions. Where equily accounting & applied, the share of profit orloss
disclosed in the "share of results of associates and joint venturas” line.

Government grants

Income from government gronts is recognised s defemed income and relecsed to the Consclidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income as the attached conditions are satisfied. Where the grant relates ta
procurernent of on assel, the amount recelved s releosed to the Comsolidoated Shatement of
Comprehensive Income over the useful life of the asset against associated depreciation.

A material grant relcted 1o assets s prasented in the statement of financlal posifion s o daduction from
the carying value of the related asset, with a consequent reduciion in the armual charge tor depreclation,

COVID- 19 retated job retention schemes are considered within the scope of 1AS 20, with furlough receipts
recorded ds areduction in paywoll expensss.

IFRS 15 Leases

Tne Group recognises a right-cl-use asset and @ lease lidbility al the lease commencemeant date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which compirizes the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted tar

any lease payments made at of before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incumred.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line meathod from the commenceament
date, The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are detamined on the same basis o5 those of
property, plont and equipment.

The ledse liabiilly &t initially measured ot the prasent value of the lease payments that ore not paid ot the
commencement date, discounted using the Group's incremental bomowing rate. The liability is sulbsequently

adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability resuiting rom reassessmants or lease madifications.

The Croup presents righf-ofuse assets in 'property. plant and squipment’ and lecase liabilities in *fnance
leases’ in tha statement of financicl position.

Sensitivity’ Intarnal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEX PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significont occounting policles (confinued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-valua asseds

The Group has elected not to recognise night-of-use assets and lease ligbilties for short-term leases of 12
monlhs or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the laase oayments associated with
these leases as an expensa on a straight-line Hasis over tha lease term.

Fareign cvmrencies

For the pumpose of the cansolidated financial statements, the resdls and finoncial position of each Group
Company are expressad in pourds steding, which is the funclional cumency of the Company, and the
prasentational curency for the consolidated financiol statements.

Manetary assets ond liabiities denominated in foreign cumencies are franslated inte stering of rates
of exchange ruiing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign cunencies are transiated Into steding
at the rate ruling on the date of the fransaction. Such exchange gains and losses are recognised in profl or
loss. Foreign exchange gains or losses on loans that cee effectively invesiment inshuments. such os where a
parent Company makes a loon with no repoyment tefrms 16 @ subsidiary holding Company a3 part of

acquisition consideration, are recognised in ather comprehensive income.

Rasulls of overseas subsidiaries are ransiated at average monthiy rates. Assets and jiabiiities of overseas
subsidiarios are franslated at the rate nuling at the balance sheet date. Such exchange differences arising
ora racognised in the translation reserve and the $tolement of Changos in Equity.

Qparating profit

QOperating profit is statad after the share of resuits of associates but before finance incorne and casts, cther

gains and losses and taxes.

Anance income

Finance income is recognised in profit of [oss in the period in which i is eamed.
Finance cosks

Finance costs are recognised in profit o loss in the pericd in which they are incured.
Cther gains and losses

Oflher gains and losses are recognised n profit or loss in the period in which they are incumed.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERION ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Slignificant accounting policies [continued)

Fre-Production related casts

Expenses incurred prior o a production going live which are directly athibutaiile to the preduction of the
show are categorised into either property plant and equipment and depreciated over the assumead usefuyl
Ife of the show, or ‘Other non-tangible assets’, which are released to the Profit and Loss over the show's
useful iife based upon the ralio of the cument period's revenues to the estimated total revenues {Total
Production Revenue) for each production. Where aestimates of Totol Preduction Revenue decreases.
armorfization of pre-production costs may be accslerated, Conversaly, it esiimates of Total Production
Revenues were to incracse then amontization of costs may be slowed,

Taxation
The fax expense represents the sum of the tax curently payable and defered tax.

Current and defemed tax ore recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that ore
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and defered tox
are cka recognised in other comprehensiva income or direcily in eguity respectively. Where current tax or
defered tax afses kom the initlal accounting for o business combination, the lax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combinalion.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for he period calculoted using tax rates that have been enccted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Detanred fax is recognised on temporary differences between the camying amounts of assefs ond liakiities
in the consolldated financial statements and the corasponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tan liabiities are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tox assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits wilk be avalable against which those deductible ternporary differences can

be utilised.

Such deferred tax assets and liabifties are not recognised it the temporary difference arises from the indtial
recognition of goodwill, from the initial recognition (other than in o business combination] of assets and
iabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxabie profit nor the accounting profit of investments in
subssidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventwes, where the Group is able to contral the reversal of
the termporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresegable
Future. Thé amount of defered tax provided & based on the expected manner of realisgtion or setflernent
of the carrving amount of assets and liakilities, using tox rates enacted or substantively enacted af the
financial period end date, A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be avallable agaoinst which the osset can be utilised.

55

Sensitivity: Intemal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {conlinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. SignMfican) accounting policles (continued)

Frovisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive] as o result of @
post event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settie that obligation ond a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

2. Crifical accaunting judgements and key sources of estimation vncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 1. the Directors are
required lo maka judgements, estimales and assumplions aboul the carrying amounts of assets and
tiabilifras that are not reaclly apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assurnptions are based on historical expedence ond other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised In the pedod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of tha ravision and future periads iF the revision affects both curent and future periods.

Judgemenls
Going concern bosis

In order to assess whether il is appropriate for the Group to be reported as o going concem, the irectors
e required to make judgements regarding the Group's future trading perfornance, cash generation and
ability to satisty its financial obligations. Having undertoken appropriate enduities and hoving considered
the business activities ond the Group's principal risks and uncertainties. the Directors concluded that the
accounts should be prepared on a going concem basis. Please refer to the Directors’ Repaort for our deldiled

assessmen! of this matter.

Key sources of esfimalion uncenainty

Canying value of non-current assels

Impainment

The Group assesses the carmying values of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assels annually.
Recoverability is dependent upon assurmptions and estimotes regording market conditions, fulure cash

flows and discount rates, known as at the 27 March 2021, A matetial change in assumplions may significantly
impact the potenfial impaimment of these assets.

An extension to the dok period af 6 months would not generate an impairment o any of the cash
generating units {CGUs) but reduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122% of asset values of the UK, Us,
Germany ond Marketing Services CGUs respectively. Further detail can be found in note 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UUMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlfinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3. Revenue

The Group's revenue frorn external customers by cidssification is delgiled below:

52 week period  52week parod
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020

£'000 £000
Venue Rentul and Production Related Services 10,489 230,068
Promational & Marketing Services 15,898 115478
Ticket and Retail Sales 5,458 119,547
Other &6.798 11,654
Total revenue 41,641 476,747

The Group's revenue from axdermal customers by geographical location is detailed below:

§2 week perfod 52 wesk pericd
ended 27 March endad 28 March

2021 2020

£000 £000
nited Kingdom 21,091 213.847
Rest of Europe 10,94% 123,473
North Americo 4,657 129,441
Asia 2.944 2,986
Total revenve 41,641 476,747
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

4. Operoling (loss)/proiit

Net loss for the period has been arived at after charging/ {crediting):

Depracialion of property, plont and oquipment 13
Depraciation charge for right-of-use assets -buildings 13
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 12
Irmpoirment of property, plant and equipment 13
impoirment of intangible assets 12
impairment of iong term debtor

toss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13
ioss on disposal of intangible ossets 12
inventory wite dowrs 14
Operating leose chorges

Staff costs &
FAnance income 7
Finance costs 8
nterest expensa on IFRS 14 lease llabilities B

52 week 52 week period
ended 28

pariod endead

27 March

2021
£000
254158

a.801
1.988

2,816
122
194
7018
38,4587
(1,548}
47,482

6,390

March 2020

£000
21,439
8.75%
1.974
7154
7776
3,967

215!
137.810
{1,344)
30,924
6,547

5. Avudilor's remunerafion

The anaiysis of the auditor's remuneration is Qs follows:

52 week petlod 52 week period

ended 27 March ended 28
2021 March 2020
£000 £000

Fees puyable to the Company's auditor and their associates for the qudit of:
The consolidated and parent findancial statements 463 418
The subsidliary tinancial staterments 30 45
Total audit fees 513 433
Taxation compliiance services - 71
Taxaflion advisory services - 10
Totol non-audl fees . 8l
Total 513 564
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

4.  Shalf costs

The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors) was:

52 week period 52 wesk period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

201 2020
Oirectors 5 5
Venue staff 3176 4,349
Other 1,105 1,526
Total monthly average number of employees 4284 5,880

The average number of individucls with an empioyment contract in place during the period i
4,698, Of this population, the total menthly average number of employees paid through the
payroll during the period s set out in the toble above,

Their aggregate remunaration compyrisad. £'000 £'000
Wages ond salories A, 141 125,664
Sociol security costs 5702 9,703
Other pensian costs 1,644 2,441
Tatal oggregote iemuneraiion 38,487 137,810

Current year staff cosls are presented net of income from government support schemes totalling £41.3
milion {2020: £nil).

Ciractors discicsed nere are only those employved by the Group. so exclude board members employed by

the Group's shareholders,

The average monthly number of employees of the Company was five, being the executive directons
[2020; fivel].

59

Sensltivity: Intarnal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

& Staff costs (conlnued)

Remuneration of directaors and key management personnel
The remuneralion of the directars and key managemeant personnel of the Group is set oul below:

52 week perlod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020
£000 £000
Remuneratfion of directors:
Saiaries. kees, bonuses, and benefits in kind 1,045 1,501
Money purchase pension contributions 1 20
Total remuneration of directors 1,056 1,521
Remunevation of directors and key monagement personnel:
Remuneration 2474 3.687
Social security contributions 349 513
Pension 54 40
Total remuneration of directors and key management 2,879 4,250

persannel

Xay monagement personnel are those who have signiicant infiuence over the operational running of the
business. During the period, retirement benefits were accming to two [2020: two) dirtectors in raspect of
defined confribution schames,

The highest paid direcior received remuneration ol £575000 [2020: £%35.000]. The vaiuve of the
Campany's contibUtions paid to g defined contribution pension scheme in respact of that individwal
amounied to £4,000 {2020: £10,000).

During the pericd, directors and key management persormei received fotat compensation for loss of office
lotalling £1.157.000 (2020: £nil). on which social security of £143,000 {2020: £nil) was paid by the Group,

Pensions

The Group cperates defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the scheme are held separately
frorm those of the Group in an independenrtly administered fund. The pension cost charge represents
contributions payable by the Group to the fund and omounted to £1.644.000 {20200 £2.441.000).
Contibulions tolaling £629,000 [2020: £340.000] were payable to the fund at the balance sheet date.

Employee benefit inyst

The Group has no direct employee share scheme or share-based payment arangement, However, cettain
employees of the Group have acquired an interest in the equity of the holding Comparny via an employee
benefil rust in both the cument and prior periods.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

7. Finaonceincome

52 week 52 week period
patiod ended ended 28
27 March 2021 March 2020

£'000 EGO0
interest income 1,546 1,324
Unwinding of discount on long term receivables and - L
payables
Finance Income 1,544 1,344

8. Finance costs

52 week perled 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

0N 20206

£'060 £000
Interest an loans fram parent undertakings 1,090 1.841
Interest on boank overdrafts and loans 25582 22084
interest an obligotions under finance leases 4,995 4957
Interest expeanse an IFRS 14 lease liabiities 4,370 &.547
Amortisction of financing fees 2,597 3780
Fareign exchange loss/{gain} 13.418 {1,738}
Finance costs 54,072 37473

6!
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

%. Toxalon

Analysis of tax credit in the period

52 week 52 week pericd

perod ended ended 28
27 March March 2020
2021

Current tax £'000 £000
Tax {credit) / charge on lass for the period (173) 4N
Prior year tax adjustment (1.333) 14.570)
Foreign tax in the period - 947
Total current tax (1,508) 13,172

Deterred tax 22
Deferod tax credil current voar (18,097 18,333
Change in tax rate - 2,780
Adjustments in respect of ptior periods 11,419 7583
Total defarred fax (4.677) {4,810}
Tax on joss i8.183] i7.982)

UK corperation tax is calculated at 19% (2020: 19%] of the estimated taxable profit for the penod. Taxation
for ofner jurisdiclions s calcuiated at the rates prevaiing in 1he respective juisdiclions.

There is Nit incoms tax impact [2020; NI for iterns within other comprehensive income.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

#. [laxation {confinugd)

The cradit for the period con be reconciled to the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Incame as

follows:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 28 ended 30 March
March 2021 2020
£'000 £000
Loss bofore tox (147,135} 133,907}

Loss multiplied by standard rote of corporation tax in the UK of
19% {2020: 19%) 127.9564) {6,442}

Effects of

Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes {141) 3,564
Adjustments to tax chargs in respect of prior periods 10,087 {3.807)
Non-quaiilving depreciation 728 -
Effect of different rate for deferred lax - 2,760
Effect of overseas tax rates [2,433) {3,402
Theatre tax cradit {173 (935)
Change in unrecognised defersd tax assets 11,970 -
Effect of foreign exchange (15) -
Cther reconciling differences . - 280
Tax credit for the pericd {8,183) {7.942)

The closing UK defered tax liability as at 27 March 2021 has been calculated at 19% reflecting the tax rate
at which the defemed tax liability is expected to became payable.

Anincrease in the UK corporation fax rate to 25%, effective iom | Apdl 2023, was announced in Rnance Bilt
2021 which received royal assent on 10 June 2021 becoming Fngnce Bill 2021, This rate had not been
substantively enacted at the balonce sheet date and therefore i not reflected in the tax calculations for
the year ended 27 march 2021, The impact of the rate changs from 9% to 25% would be to incredse the
defemred tax ligbikly as at 27 March 2021 from £10,883,000 to £14.320,000.

Deferred tax liabiities have not been recognised in respect of ksses in overseas subsidianes as it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be ulilised,

Deferred tox assets on carried forward unutifsed losses in Australia of £2,392,000 (2020: £2,097.000). Germary
of £29,575000 (2020: £10,81%9.000 recognised] and the US of £30,903.000 [2020: £nil} have nol been
recognised.

There gre caried forward unutiised tax losses In the UK of £87,382,000 {2020: £351,000). A deferred tax assel
of £156,536.000 {2020: £ni) has been recognised as it s expacted that these losses will be utilised within the
next two years,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202

10. Invesimends

ho directly and indirectly held subsidiaries ore iisted in note 33.

Group As ot 52 waelk  As gt 52 week
perod ended  period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2920
£00D £000

Cost and net book value
Listed investments - 1
Undisted invastments 2.178 4,355
Investmentis 2,178 4,356
Company Asalt 52 week As ot 52 week
period ended  period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

Cost and net book value
Subsidiary investments 413,835 262,575
Investiments 413,835 262 575

The Group's uniisted investments relate to its investment in Kings Thealre Redevelopment Company LLC. o
company incarporated in the United Stales of America of which the Group owns 1. 08%.

64

Sensitivity: inte